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February 19, 2020 
 
Vincent G. Bradley 
Chairman 
New York State Liquor Authority 
80 S. Swan Street, 9th Floor 
Albany, New York 12210  
 
Re: RLA 319 W 51st Street Corp d/b/a TBD 
 319 West 51st Street, NY, NY (8th/9th Avenues) 
   
Dear Chairman Bradley: 

 
Manhattan Community Board 4 (MCB4) recommends denial of the application for an OP 
license for RLA 319 W 51st Street Corp d/b/a TBD, 319 West 51st Street, NY, NY (8th/9th 
Avenues).1  MCB4 has been unable to confirm that this applicant has no connection with 
Besim Kukaj -- who held an OP license for this establishment/location until recently, 
when that license was summarily suspended by the Liquor Authority.  At that time, the 
Liquor Authority suspended four of Mr. Kukaj’s licenses, including three in this district.  
With interesting timing, supposedly new operators for all three of those establishments 
presented their applications to the Business Licenses and Permits (BLP) Committee of 
MCB4 at the same January 14, 2020 meeting.  MCB4 is concerned about the possibility 
of Mr. Kukaj’s involvement with the supposedly new establishment and the new OP 
license.  If the Liquor Authority concludes that the current applicant has no connection to 
Mr. Kukaj, then MCB4 recommends denial unless the attached stipulations, proposed by 
the applicant, are made terms of the license. 
 
History at 319 West 51st Street  
 
319 West 51st Street was formerly licensed (License No. 1119055) as Maria Pia and 
licensed under 319 WEST 51ST STREET REST INC, one of Mr. Kukaj’s multiple 
licenses.  
 
The Current Application 

 
1  MCB4’s recommendation is based on a vote taken at its February 5, 2020 full board meeting, with 
__39__ members voting in favor of the recommendation, _0___ members opposed,  _0___ members 
abstaining and _0___ present but not eligible. 
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At the January 14, 2020 meeting of the BLP Committee, Ruki Ajdari presented his 
application for an OP license at 319 West 51st  Street.  Mr. Ajdari informed the committee 
that he intends to operate an Italian restaurant at 319 W 51st  Street. He did not indicate 
whether he would be maintaining the Maria Pia name, décor, staff, and method of 
operation.  Mr. Ajdari operates a nightclub in Manhattan Community Board 3 and 
acknowledged that, when he initially applied for that liquor license, it was presented to 
that community board as a family-style restaurant.  Members of the public have sent 
comments to MCB4 indicating their beliefs that Mr. Ajdari is an associate of Mr. Kukaj.  
 
MCB4’s Recommendation re 319 W 51st Street 
 
Given Besim Kukaj’s history in this district and with the Liquor Authority, MCB4 is 
concerned about Mr. Kukaj obtaining any new licenses or having any involvement with 
the sale of alcoholic beverages in this district.  Although MCB4 has been unable to 
confirm any of the alleged connections between the current applicant Ruki Ajdari and 
Mr. Kukaj, there are red flags.  Mr. Kukaj operated and previously held the OP license at 
the current Maria Pia at 319 W 51st Street.  
 
In addition, this establishment is in an area with a high concentration of liquor licenses -- 
21 (twenty-one) OP liquor licenses within 500 feet of this address (per the SLA LAMP 
report) -- and granting another license under these circumstances would not be in the 
public interest. 
 
Accordingly, MCB4 requests that the Liquor Authority investigate whether the applicant 
Mr. Ajdari has any connection to Mr. Kukaj and whether Mr. Kukaj will be involved in 
any way in the ownership or operation of the planned establishment.  If no such 
connections are found, MCB4 would recommend denial unless the attached stipulations, 
submitted by Mr. Ajdari, are made terms of the license at 319 W 51st Street. 
 
Based on the information currently available to it and for the reasons stated above, 
however, MCB4 requests that the present application be denied. 
 
Thank you for your attention and cooperation with this application. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

Lowell D. Kern 
Chair 
 

Yoni Bokser 
Co-Chair 
Business Licenses & Permits 
Committee  

Frank Holozubiec 
Co-Chair 
Business Licenses & Permits 
Committee  

        

















- Applicant will not use the enclosed rear yard until the Dept. of Buildings issues a certificate of Occupancy or
 other approval and will notify MCB4 of the certificate  





0 Denial unless all stipulations agreed to by applicanl/owner are part of the method of 

Manhattan Community Board 4 (MC84) recommends: operation 

{MCB4's recommendation is based on a vote taken at its 
_____ full board meeting, with __ members voling in favor O Denial O Approval 

of the recommendation, __ members opposed, __ members 
abstaining and_ present but not eligible) 
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Applicant agrees tD these stipulations as the basis for the community support of this application and acknowledges that all of these 
stipulations are essential prerequisites to the MCB4 recommendation regarding this application. Applicant agrees to have these 
stipulations incorporated in the method of operation of its liquor license. The stipulations in this application constitute the entire 
agreement between MC84 and applicant and may only be altered in writing signed by MCB4 and applicant. These stipulations 
supersede any oral statements or representations in connection with this application. 
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